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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Good afternoon,
all. This hearing is called to order this
Thur sday, Septenber 19, 2019, at 3 p.m M nane
is Robert Silvestri, nmenber and presiding officer
of the Connecticut Siting Council. O her nenbers
of the Council are M. Robert Hannon, designee for
Conm ssi oner Katie Dykes of the Departnent of
Energy and Environnental Protection; M. Zachary
Al exander; designee for Chairman Marissa Paslick
Gllette fromthe Public Uilities Regul atory
authority; M. Daniel P. Lynch, Jr.; M. M chael
Harder; and M. Edward Edel son.

Menbers of the staff are Ms. Mel anie
Bachnman, Executive Director and Staff Attorney;
and M. Robert Mercer, siting anal yst.

This hearing is held pursuant to the
provisions of Title 16 of the Connecticut General
Statutes and of the Uniform Adm ni strative
Procedure Act upon an application from Tarpon
Towers I, LLC, for a certificate of environnental
conpatibility and public need for the
construction, mai ntenance and operation of
tel ecomuni cations facility | ocated at 796 Wodin
Street in Handen, Connecticut. This application

was received by the Council on July 15, 2019.
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As a remnder to all, off-the-record
communi cation wth a nenber of the Council or a
menber of the Council staff upon the nerits of
this application is prohibited by | aw.

The parties and interveners to this
proceeding are as follows. The applicant, Tarpon
Towers I, LLC, and its representative Vincent M
Mari no, Esquire, of Cohen and Wolf, PC;, intervener
Cell co Partnership, doing business as Verizon
Wreless, it's representative Ken C. Bal dw n,
Esquire, of Robinson & Cole, LLP.

W will proceed in accordance with the
prepared agenda, copies of which |I believe are
avai l able in the back of the room Also avail able
there are copies of the Council's citizens guide
to Siting Council's procedures.

At the end of this afternoon's
evidentiary session we Wwll recess and resune
again at 6:30 p.m for the public comment session.
The 6:30 p.m public coment session wll be
reserved for the public to nake brief oral
statenents into the record.

I wish to note that the applicant and
interveners, including their representatives and

W tnesses are not allowed to participate in the
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public comment session. | also wsh to note for
those who are here and for the benefit of your
friends and nei ghbors who are unable to join us
for the public coment session, that you or they
may send witten comments and statenents to the
Council wthin 30 days of the date hereof and such
witten statenents wll be given the sane wei ght
as if spoken at the hearing.

A verbatimtranscript will be made of
this hearing and deposited with the Town of Handen
and the City of New Haven's Clerks' offices for
t he conveni ence of the public.

Is there any public official here at
this tinme that wi shes to now nake a public

st at enent ?

(No response.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Heari ng and seei ng
none, we w || proceed.

There is a request from SBA
Communi cati ons Cor poration doi ng busi ness as MCM
Acqui sition 2017, LLC, for intervener and CEPA
intervener status in this proceeding. The

applicant objects to this request, and SBA replied
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to the objection.

Attorney Bachnman may w sh to coment.

MS. BACHMAN:  Thank you, M. Chairman.

SBA Communi cations filed a request for
i ntervener status under the Uniform Adm ni strative
Procedure Act, and under the Public Utility and
Envi ronnent al Standards Act, as well as
Connecti cut Environnental Protection Act status
under GCeneral Statutes Section 22a-19.

If I could perhaps, M. Chairman, ask
Attorney Ainsworth a few questions, please?

Attorney Ainsworth, are you a nenber of
t he Connecticut Council on Environnental Quality?

MR AINSWORTH: | am

MS. BACHVAN: And when were you
appoi nted to the CEQ?

MR AINSWORTH: | believe March or April
of this year.

MS. BACHMAN.  And were you present at
t he August 28, 2019, CEQ neeting?

MR AINSWORTH: 1'd have to check. |
believe | may have been. | know I m ssed one of
t hem because | was on vacati on.

MS. BACHMAN: Adm nistrative notice

itenms nunber 55 and nunber 56 are the CEQ m nutes
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from March 27, 2019, and August 28, 2019, that
i ndicate that you were present?

MR Al NSWORTH: Then that's probably
accur at e.

M5. BACHMAN: And did you participate in
t he di scussi on about submtting coments relative
to this application?

MR AINSWORTH:  |I'mnot certain | did,
but | was present for whatever discussion was
goi ng on at the tine.

MS. BACHVAN. |'mgoing to just ask
Attorney Marino and Attorney Baldw n if they have
any objection to Attorney Ainsworth representing
SBA conmmuni cati ons of the matter?

MR MARINO May | have a nonent to
confer?

Whi l e the applicant has concern because
Attorney Ainsworth woul d have been a nenber of the
body --

MR. LYNCH. Can't hear you.

MR MARINO | apol ogize. Wile the
appl i cant has sone concern and reservati on because
Attorney Ai nsworth woul d have been one of a body
of a larger nunber, his voice al one woul d not

l'i kely have control |l ed the outcone of that
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proceeding. So we're not going to assert any
affirmati ve objection at that point.

MS. BACHMAN:  Attorney Bal dwi n?

MR, BALDWN. W do not object.

MS. BACHMAN: Ckay. Thank you.

MR AINSWORTH: And to the extent that
the Council is curious | would of course recuse
nysel f of any di scussion going forward.

MS. BACHMAN:  Thank you, Attorney
Al nswor t h.

M. Chairman, now ensuring there's no
objection to Attorney Ainsworth's participation,
staff recommends that the request for intervener
and CEPA intervener status submtted by SBA be
gr ant ed.

MR HANNON: |'Il nove it.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | have a noti on.

MR. ALEXANDER  Second.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | have a second.

Any di scussi on?

Hearing none -- oh, I'msorry.

M. Lynch?

MR LYNCH: Now just for clarification
is Attorney Ainsworth recusing hinself, or not

recusi ng hinsel f?
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MS. BACHVAN. He is not recusing hinself
as neither of the other attorneys for parties in
the matter have any objection to his
partici pati on.

MR LYNCH What if we have an
obj ecti on?

MS. BACHVAN: We'd vote no on the
not i on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Anyt hi ng el se,
M. Lynch.

MR LYNCH: No.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any ot her
comments? M. Harder?

MR. HARDER: The notion is to approve
the intervention request?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, for
i ntervener and CEPA intervener status.

Any ot her conments?

(No response.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Heari ng none, we
do have a notion and a second. All those in favor
signi fy by saying, aye.

THE COUNCI L: Aye.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Any opposed?
M. Lynch?
MR LYNCH: No.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  Any abstentions?

(No response.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then the notion
carries.

Continuing, | wish to call your
attention to those itens shown on the hearing
program mar ked as Roman nuneral one D, itenms 1
t hrough 75.

Does the applicant or any party or
i ntervener have an objection to the itens that the
Council has adm nistratively noticed?

MR MARINO No, M. Chairman.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MR. BALDW N No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

MR, Al NSWORTH: No obj ecti on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

Accordi ngly, the Council hereby
adm nistratively notices these existing docunents,

statenents and comments. WII| the applicant
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pl ease present it's witness panel for purposes of
taking the oath, and the Council Staff Attorney
w || adm ni ster the oath?

MR- MARINO  Thank you, M. Chairnman.
Good afternoon. M nane is Vincent Marino. |I'm
wth the Law Firm of Cohen and Wl f on behal f of
t he applicant Tarpon Towers |1, LLC.

To ny immedi ate left is M. Keith
Coppi ns who's the Principal of Phoenix Partnership
and is representing Tarpon Towers |1, LLC, today.

To his left and ny far left is Doug
Roberts. M. Roberts is a senior project manager
for Hudson Design G oup.

To ny right is Dean Qust af son.
M. CQustafson is the senior wetland scientist al so
wth Al Points Technology, Inc, with his
associ ate M ke Libertine to his right who is the
Director of Siting and Permtting with Al Points
Technol ogy, Inc.

M. Chairman, at this nonent | would

offer these witnesses to be sworn in.
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KEI TH COPPI NS

MI CHAEL P. LI BERTI NE

DEAN E. GUSTAFSON,

DOUGLAS J. ROBERT S,
call ed as witnesses, being first duly sworn
by the Executive Director, were exam ned and

testified on their oaths as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Attorney Mari no,
if you could please begin by nunbering exhibits of
the filing you've made in this matter nmaking a
request to admnistrative notice the existing
docunents and verifying all exhibits by the
appropriate sworn wtnesses?

MR- MARINO  Thank you, M. Chairnman.
We have el even exhibits listed in the hearing
program under Roman nuneral two, section B, itens
one through eleven. | offer themfor
identification purposes at this tinme, subject to
verification by our w tness panel.

The panel can assist ne by verifying
t hese exhibits. W'Il|l proceed. |1'mgoing to
start to ny left and go around all the w tnesses
to go through each of these. Thank you.

Did you prepare or assist in the
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preparation of the exhibits listed in the hearing
program under Ronan nuneral two, section B, itens
one t hrough el even, M. Coppins?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes, | did.

MR MARINO M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, | did.

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Dean
Qust af son, yes.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): M ke
Li berti ne, yes.

MR MARINO. And do you have any
corrections, nodifications or anendnents to offer
to any of these exhibits at this tine,

M . Coppi ns?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): No, | don't.

MR MARINO M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, | do. W
have a request of a change in the plans which we
woul d nove conpound approximately 22 feet north
nort hwest of where it is. The tower itself would
stay in that |ocation where it was fl agged.

So our visibility was shown within the
exhibit. It's at the flood zone. It would give
us a little bit of a buffer to the wetl ands,

addi tional buffer to the wetl ands. And | have
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brought 15 copies wth ne.

MR MARINGO Ckay. |In addition -- I'm
sorry. Do you have a copy of those plans with
you?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

MR MARING May | present those plans?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes, pl ease.

We'd i ke to distribute these first
before you conti nue.

MR MARINO | will not proceed until
t hey have been accept ed.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: | want to get them
stanped in and distributed accordingly.

M. Roberts, for clarity could you again
repeat what you had stated about these draw ngs?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | woul d be happy
to. Wiat we did was we shifted the conpound
itself 22 feet to nove it away fromthe wetl ands
to give us an additional buffer to that resource.

We kept the tower itself where it would
stay in its exact location. Nothing really has
changed on the grading of the access road. That
was reduced by approximately 22 feet. And our
cuts and fills would vary slightly fromwhere it

was presented wthin the interrogatories.
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Everyt hing el se would be the sane, the

access road and access to the site itself. St aked

today was the original location. The tower again
woul d stay the sane. It would just shift it sort
of up gradient away fromthe resource.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you for the
clarification. W'IIl continue.

MR. MARI NGO  Thank you, M. Chairnan.

And M. Roberts, and just for a
reference there this refers to a nodification to

t he application, Exhibit E?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is correct.

MR. MARI NG Thank you. And are there
any other corrections or nodifications that you
have to add?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): MNone at this
tinme.

MR MARINO M. CGustafson. Have there
been any corrections or nodifications that you're
awar e of ?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): No, no
corrections or nodifications.

MR MARINO M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): None at this

tine.
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MR MARINO And with these corrections
and nodifications, is the informati on contained in
the exhibits true and accurate to the best of your
know edge, M. Coppi ns?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes, they are.

MR MARINO M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, they are.

MR MARINO M. Custafson?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): Yes, they are.

MR MARINO M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes.

MR. MARINO And do you adopt the
information in these exhibits as your testinony in
t hese proceedi ngs, M. Coppins?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes, | do.

MR MARINO M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, | do.

MR MARINO M. Custafson?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yes, | do.

MR MARINO M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes.

MR MARINO M. Chairman, | offer these
exhibits as full exhibits at this tine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Does any party or

i ntervener object to the adm ssion of the
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applicant's exhi bits?

MR. BALDW N No objection.

MR Al NSWORTH: None.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. The
exhibits are so adm tted.

MR. MARI NGO  Thank you, M. Chairnan.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: W will now begin
W th cross-exam nation by the applicant by
M. Mercier.

MR- MERCI ER  Thank you. Just a little
bit of the new plans in relation to the field of
view. Just so |l -- | wasn't sure if | understood
correctly, but the size in the field, the size of
the tower -- are conpound flags that we observed
t oday, was that based on the new plan or the old
pl an?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is the
original plan. Not -- not the one in the docket,
but the one that was provided wthin the
I nterrogatori es.

MR MERC ER I nterrogatory set two?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

MR- MERCIER  Ckay. Thank you.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): So again, to not

confuse i ssues we wanted to nmake sure we all
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| ooked at it.

MR MERCIER And just so | understand
what you m ght have said, | saw on both plans j ust
a qui ck glance the distance of the access road is
700 feet. So nowit's 700 feet mnus 22 roughly?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, correct.

MR MERCIER Ckay. And did you revise
the cut and fill estimates that originally --

THE W TNESS (Roberts): W haven't
revised them but it wll vary slightly due to
t hat change.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Mercier, if
you woul d pause for one second?

I'"'mhaving a hard tine hearing. It
could be ny location, but could we adjust that?

Thank you, M. Mercier.

MR, MERCI ER  Thank you. Now out on the
field review for the flagged wetl and | ocations is
it fair to say pretty nuch they foll ow kind of
li ke these gully systens on either side of the
fl agged conpound area?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): Yes. Yeah
there -- there are seasonal eroded swal es that
fall, that essentially drain down on either side

of the proposed access and where the conmpound is
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| ocat ed.

MR, LYNCH. M. CGustafson, could you
nove the m crophone a little cl oser?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): Sure.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And coul d you
repeat your answer, please?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): No problem

Yes, the proposed conpound and where the
tower is | ocated near the wetland corridor, narrow
seasonal wetland corridor seeps that run on either
side and drain away fromthe proposed devel opnent.

MR MERCIER Wuld it be fair to say
during, like, a high rain event that woul d be
highly erosive on those gullies? A lot of water
collecting and traveling down there causing that
erosi on -- those steep banks there?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): Yes. So we
did see -- we did see, during our original
delineation we did see sone water seepage through
there. And based on evidence of physi cal
attributes within those gully systens there woul d
be some water running down there, those wetl and,
now wetl and corridors particularly during the
spring nelt off.

We woul dn't expect a | ot of water
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t hrough there. Probably the nost -- the depth of
wat er woul d be | ess than two feet, but there, you
know, you are running through sone noderate

t opogr aphy through that area. So you would see
some noderate flows wi thin those.

They're pretty well in size qgully
systens. So the water doesn't spread out nuch
beyond where they wetl and boundari es have been
del i neat ed.

MR. MERCI ER  Thank you. Now | ooki ng at
the plan I did notice that the conmpound was noved
away from | guess I'll call it the main body of
the wetlands. And it pretty nmuch, according to
your revised plan, it's only four feet fromthe
gully to the east.

As you devel op the conpound area with
the fill and other construction out there, noving
the dirt around |I assunme you obvi ously have
erosion controls, but on the south end where you
have a built up step, it | ooks maybe about six,
seven feet |ooking at this plan.

How woul d that be stabilized to protect
agai nst any kind of rain, high rain event, you
know, to prevent rilling or anything |ike that

fromwashing into the wetland to the south there?
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THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Are you
tal king --

MR. MERCIER  During construction you
have, you know, an exposed slope. And | did see a
note you're going to put sonme seed and straw down,
but what if there's a high rain event? That could
wash sone of that away. O if it's in the
w ntertinme how woul d that area be kind of
stabilized to protect that small fill area, that
slope there to the south, and from any ki nd of
erosi on going down into the adjacent wetl and?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Just a point
of clarification. Your -- your concern is during
construction before the slope gets prematurely
stabilized --

MR MERCIER  Correct.

THE W TNESS (GQustafson): GCkay. Thank
you. What we would recommend in this particul ar
case is, you know, | believe what is proposed
right nowis a standard sill fence. W would
recommend that that is backed up wth additi onal
erosi on protecti on nmeasures, either sone type of
conpost filter sock or a straw wattle to provide
addi ti onal protection neasures.

That isn't a particularly |Iong sl ope.
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It's a fairly short steep slope. So we don't
think there's a significant risk for erosion, but
addi ng sone additional protections, essentially
bel ts and suspenders woul d be advi sabl e j ust
because we are fairly close to wetl and resources.

In that sane vein we would reconmmend,
should this facility get approved by the Council,
during the devel opnent managenent pl anni ng process
that we include a wetl and protecti on plan which
we' ve done on simlar dockets in front of the
Counci | .

And that woul d include contractor
awar eness training at a preconstructi on neeti ng,
and then third-party nonitoring by Al Points of
the installation of the erosion control neasures
before they start earthwork. And then periodic
nmoni toring of the construction and nake sure the
ENS controls are being properly naintai ned during
the life of the construction project until it's
permanently stabilized.

MR MERCIER Ckay. That brings up
anot her point. | was reading your prefiled
testinony and | think in your response seven it
said that you would recomend what you j ust

menti oned as a wetl and protection program but
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then in response eleven it said you wll be
providing it. So |I'mnot sure.

Is this sonething that Tarpon has
already agreed to? O is this still a
reconmendat i on?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): No. Maybe
m sspoke on referencing the D and M pl an phase.
And we can certainly provide the details of that
as a late file to the Council as opposed to
waiting for inplenmenting it during the dam
pr ocess.

No, it's already been di scussed wth the
project team Everyone is in agreenent that that
shoul d be i ncl uded.

MR, MERCI ER. Thank you.

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): You're
wel cone.

MR. MERCI ER:  Now | understand Cell co,
who's here as an intervener in, now located in the
conpound. And | believe in the interrogatory
responses you have T-Mobil e under an executed
| ease to also |locate at the site at sone point in
the future. |Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes, it is.

MR. MERCIER Do you know what hei ght




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

25

T-Mobile mght | ocate at?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): They are at
110 feet.

MR MERCIER  Ckay. Do you know what
their equi pnent needs would be? Are they going to

do cabi nets or anythi ng?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): | believe | have
that in ny |lease, and they -- they're equi pnment
specific. | think they're doing cabinets.

MR MERCIER Ckay. So it would be on a
pad.

THE W TNESS (Coppins): It would be on a
pad, correct.

MR MERCIER Do you know if they have a
separate fuel tank, kind of like Cellco set up in
the site plans?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): If you'll give
me a mnute | can see what it says that they're
doi ng.

MR. MERCIER  Check on that. | guess ny
point is that you have a 70 by 40 conpound
shrunken down from 70 by 70 initially. Wuld
t here be enough roomfor nultiple carriers that
m ght carry their own fuel sources in addition to

t heir cabi nets?
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THE W TNESS (Coppins): | have spoken
wth M. Roberts. [|I'mgoing to | et himanswer
t hat .

THE W TNESS (Roberts): One of the
probl ens, of course, is when you have wetl ands
nost -- nost of all the carriers wll elect either
to not have a backup generator, or they'll use a
propane tank. And with a propane tank --

THE REPORTER: |'m having trouble
heari ng you.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Sorry. 1"l
repeat nyself.

The carriers that woul d have a generator
there due to the close proximty would either --
well, they would either have a generator, a
pr opane generate or would elect not to have a
generator there, and use batteries as their main
backup.

The probl em you have wth propane tanks
is the ten-foot spark clearance. And when you
have multi ple generators with nmultiple propane
tanks, this clearance, you know, eats up a | ot of
real estate as opposed to a diesel scenario which
we're all accustoned to. W don't have those

cl earance problens. So that's why it's a little
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bit bigger, 70-foot than -- than nornmally we woul d
provi de.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch.

MR LYNCH M. Roberts, did | hear you
right that each carrier would have to have its own
private, separate propane tank?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That woul d be
correct.

MR, LYNCH. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M. Lynch.

MR MERCIER If there was an issue with
the size of the conpound, assum ng a propane tank
or just nore equi pnent that was necessary, would
Tarpon try to expand this conpound towards one of
the wetland areas? O is this 70 by 40 going to
be -- | understand your |ease is 75 by 75, but I
just want to know where woul d t he expansi on occur
if there was one?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): | can answer
that. |If anything, we would -- our goal -- our
goal right nowis not to expand the conpound. |
t hi nk we can nmake everything work in there,
however if we did we woul d not expand the conpound

toward -- toward a wetl and.
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And back to your question earlier, the
T- Mobi | e does have a generator, 25 kWgenerator --
going to be going on the site.

MR MERCIER |Is that the diesel setup?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes, it is.

MR. MERCIER  Thank you. | just saw one
note in the site of the elevation part in the
application. It did list the ground el evati on
initially at 123, so | wasn't sure if there was
actual ly another |ocation on the property that was
initially contenpl ated before you shifted it down
t owar ds the wooded ar ea.

Was that just a msprint? It was in the
appendi x E, the first, the first entry on the
basi s ground el evation 123. So | wasn't sure
where that figure cane from

THE W TNESS (Coppins): So | understand
you' re tal ki ng about appendi x E?

MR MERCIER  Yeah. Correct. It said,
ground el evation 123. | guess ny point was, can
you nove the tower even further to the northwest
closer to nore of the pasture areas rather than
goi ng way into the woods adjacent to all the
wet | ands?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): That's correct.
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MR MERCIER | nean, can you nove it
even farther back towards the pasture area? Can
you nove this site? Wuld the | andowner be
amenable to noving this site towards the pasture
area?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): | did have a
conversation with -- with the I andowner, and if it
was a requirenent of the Council we would be able
to nove it.

MR MERCIER Is there any discussion of
actual ly nmaybe using that asphalt road we wal ked
on at the field review to get back there?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): W -- we had
di scussions with them but the other owner, as you
can see, has a -- they have a rescue, a large
ani mal rescue business there. And they, they have
pl ans for that whole area for expansi on, maybe
anot her paddock or maybe anot her barn, which is
why it's limted, you know, why we have been
limted to where we're goi ng.

MR MERCIER  So beyond the cl eared area
that's there presently they m ght take out sone
nore trees, potentially build another paddock and
a barn potentially?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): That is correct.
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Those are future pl ans.

MR MERCIER  Ckay. | guess
M. Libertine, that you can tal k about today's
ball oon fly, please. Wat tinme you started and
what happened at the field review while you were
t here?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Sure. Well
for the first time in a long tine we had actual ly
sone very good weather to be able to conduct this
on the day of the hearing, so that was a benefit.

We've had the balloon up there at about
15 feet offset of the proposed centerline of the
tower due to the canopy that was just too thick
for us to get the balloon up through, but we've
had a real heliumfilled ball oon about
approxi mately four feet in dianeter up since about
a quarter to eight this norning. It wll be kept
up until six this evening per The Council's
request.

And as | said, it's just been really a
superb day for overall visibility and very, very
| ow wi nds. That balloon has not really noved at
all .

MR. MERCIER  Thank you. Just going to

the visibility report. You know, | was | ooking at
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the visibility map, the area that was provi ded at
the end of -- what's that? Exhibit H?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes.

MR MERCIER | see the larger scale nap
that shows a two-nmile radius -- smaller scale,
excuse ne. About a two-mle radius is shown on
the left. And up on the upper right is the bl owp
of the site.

And | just noticed | ooking at the tower
| ocation, looking at a two-mle radius map to the
left of the tower it shows quite a bit of
year-round visibility, but on the blowup on the
top it doesn't show the visibility that's to the
west side. So | was trying to figure out what the
year-round visibility would be fromthe west
| ocation, which | believe is the West Rock Nature
Center?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Yes. And this
is one of the limtations we have wth the nunber
of colors we can use. Actually what you're
| ooking at on the two-mle radius portion of that
map essentially where photo -- the nuneral 2, 28,
and 27 and 26 are all |ocated, that actually, that
particular color is not yellow That's actually

the color to note the park that you just
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ref erenced.

So | apologize. It's very -- it's very
close. Nowthat I'"'mlooking at it, it can be a
little confusing. Simlarly there are areas
further to the west up on West Rocks Ri dge that
are in a simlar orange, that are in |land trust.
Those are not areas of seasonal visibility.

So that's sonmething we'll try to
strai ghten out for our next rendition of these
maps, because they're very, very close in color.
So | can see the confusion there. But -- and I
can certainly speak to the visibility within that
part. W wal ked those trails.

MR. MERCIER  Yeah. Thank you for the
clarification. |[|'mjust wondering how cl ose the
trails cone to the property line, and if soneone
is walking trails would they see the conpound, the
| ower part of the tower? What exactly would they
see, do you believe?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Sure. W've
had the luxury of actually evaluating the site
both during | eaf-on and | eaf-off conditions during
a period of about a year and a half. Ganted, the
tower | ocation has noved, been shifter by 30,

40 feet one way or another, but essentially it
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remains static in a simlar ground el evati on.

What we found was that nobst of the
activity in that park, in the nature center itself
and the nmajority of trails are nostly in the
sout hern portion of the park. So where you see
photos 26, 27 and in that |location, that's the
mai n use of the park itself.

What has -- what we did find when the
| eaves were off the trees is that as you get to
the northern portion there is one trail. You wl|l
be able to see through the trees the upper
portions of the tower. | don't know if you had
t he opportunity when we were out there on the
field review, but when we were standing generally
w thin the conmpound, if you | ooked towards the
south, towards that area the topography does rise
slightly.

And that actually works to our advant age
fromthe standpoint of when you're on any of the
trails and that northern portion of the center,
the nature center, you will not have a direct line
of sight that would go into the conpound. W
actually have a little bit of a slight rise, so
t hat does hel p.

I would point to either photo 28 or
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photo 24 that gives you a pretty good idea of what
you woul d see during the wintertine, again when
the | eaves are off the trees.

And M. Mercer, | do want to apol ogi ze.
| think I m sspoke earlier. Wat | neant to say
on that nap, that color, that actually is supposed
to be seasonal visibility. That is overlaid on
the green, and that's why we're getting that kind
of in between yellow, and that's consistent with
what you're seeing on the inset that just goes a
t housand-foot radius -- or a half mle radius,
excuse ne.

So | apol ogi ze, because | think I
confused nyself on that. But essentially to
answer your question, we were aware of the nature
center and its inportance. And so that's
sonething that we al so needed to bal ance between
how far we could push it south to satisfy the
| andlord with also trying to avoid wetlands. So
we cane up with what we felt was a fairly happy
medi um t hat works pretty well.

So there's mninmal visibility. Really
no visibility when the | eaves are on the trees.

MR MERCIER G eat. Thank you.

Looking at the inset map again, it does show
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seasonal visibility fromWodin Street right in
front of the property and sone areas of year-round
visibility.

So I'"'mjust trying to get a sense --
essentially on Wodin street -- I'mjust trying to
get a sense of what the abutters to the east of
the host property potentially could see. Wuld it
be year round or seasonal ?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Fromthe road
itself we confirned that it was going to be
seasonal at best. |If you take a | ook at photo
seven which was taken fromthe front of the
driveway -- actually beyond the house where we
parked. This is -- the shot is actually at our
| andl ord's property overl ooki ng his house.

And you can actually also see the
bal | oon today between the two trees even with the
| eaves on it. W did not see anything simlar to
that up and down the road. Mbst of what was shown
as the year-round visibility on any of the
properties that would be south of Wodin Street
are on private property.

So ny guess is that there are going to
be sone locations in between tree canopi es where

you nay be able to see the balloon. And I would




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

36

say as a worst-case, a view simlar to seven, but

| can't verify that and I would be hard-pressed to
think that it would be quite as dramatic only
because the canopy tends to thicken as you nove
eastward in the back sides of those properties.

| had the opportunity when we flew the
bal |l oons to wal k the perineter of our property,
the northern perineter so at least | can |ook into
fol ks' backyards. The treeline continues fairly
deeply further north into those backyards.

So ny guess is that there will probably
be sone areas where you can see it particularly
during the seasonal tines of the year when the
| eaves are off the trees, but | don't believe
there are going to be dramatic views of the tower
on any type of year-round basis.

And | don't believe it will really
ecli pse any of the canopy ot her than maybe
sonething simlar to photo seven where in one
| ocation you may be able to | ook between two
t reet ops.

MR. MERCI ER  When you were wal ki ng
around along the perineter of the host property
| ooking at the abutting properties did you get a

sense of what the tree heights were in that
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| ocati on?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): They're --
they're all pretty consistent as you get east.
It's still a fairly mature forest. So |I'm not
sure, Doug, if you shot any of those trees. W
were | ooking at, you know, sonewhere in anywhere
between 60 and 80 feet for the mature trees in
t hat general area.

And the other thing | mght point to
that m ght be helpful, if you conpare photograph
nunber 23 which is nore on the eastern end of
Wodin Street, again it's further away, but |
think it will give you a pretty good idea as -- if
you recollect, we kind of drove into a holl ow and
then rose up to our properties, our landlord' s
property.

You tend to draw quite a bit of
el evation along the road in sone of those
properties. And so | think 23 just gives you an
i dea of how all of the sudden the tower starts to
drop into the trees thensel ves as opposed to
eclipsing the trees.

That you'll see in photo seven just to
kind of -- and we did that purposely to give you

folks kind of a reference of the extent of that
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visibility along that road.

MR MERCIER On page 1 of your report
under project undertaking it listed an above nean
sea | evel height of 185.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): I'msorry.
Coul d you -- under project undertaking?

MR MERCIER  The third |ine.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That is a --

MR- MERCIER  That wasn't the value to
get to the nodel ?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): No, it's not.
That is a msprint and | apol ogize for that. No,
the nodel is actually -- because it's devel oped
through a digital surface nodel which has the
t opography in the actual data, it's accurate to
the LIDAR data itself. So | apologize. It should
have been corrected.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Libertine,
just a clarification. The 185 is not affecting
t he nodel ?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): It does not
affect the nodel in any way. No, that's just
strictly a typo for the narrative itself.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Yeah, there
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are no nmanual inputs anynore. |In the old days we
did. W' re now using LIDAR detection that can be
created into a digital surface nodel. So al

t hose values are inherent in the data package
itself.

MR MERCIER |I'mgoing to | ook at the
inset map again on the ariel inagery. To the
northwest is Lake Wntergreen, which is shown in
little blotches of yell ow here and there. | know
in your prefiled you said the top of the tower may
be visible. Wen you say, top, do you nean the
ot her platforms?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yeah, | would
say at best we'd be tal king about the very top 10,
potentially 15 feet. | did ask one of ny
associ ates this norning after the ball oon was
aloft to go and actually recheck the western
shoreline as close as they could, and there was no
visibility what soever.

I think that's |ikely sonmewhat of an
over prediction. That tends to happen wth the
nodel itself, and it's clearly shown over the open
wat er only.

MR MERCIER And |I'm | ooking at the

.5-mle radius |line that goes around that inset,
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and pretty nuch due west of the tower where the
line hits West Rock it appears there's a
structure. Do you know if that's the existing
towers up on West rock?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): If it's just
beyond?

MR. MERCI ER  Yeah, just beyond
the dashed line there sone type of structure?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yeah. So
there are a few towers up in that general area.
So | believe that it is.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: G ven its high
el evati on and naybe the tower heights, which are
not |isted anywhere, however woul d you
believe that is it possible those towers would be
vi sible from Lake Wntergreen as soneone m ght be
along the shoreline in other areas, especially to
t he east side?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Based on
t opography and | ocati on, and di stance, and just ny
general know edge of driving down the Merit,
extrapol ating ny guess is that, yes, they woul d.
Those are fairly prom nent towers on top of the
ridge itself.

MR MERCIER  Ckay. Thank you. | have




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

41

no other questions at this tine.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Just before we
continue, a couple points | have. M. Libertine,
you're going to provide a revised col or-coded nap?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): | certainly
can if the Council wi shes. That's --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I think that woul d
be hel pful.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Sure.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then M. Roberts,
when we were tal king about the size of the
conmpound with the potential for nore generators
fromother carriers, hence nore fuel storage, has
t here been any thought or discussion about sharing
a fuel tank?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): There hasn't
been di scussion. Sonetines -- many tinmes in years
past they certainly did common generators and
common fuel sources. Now it tends to be each nan
for thensel ves, or team for thenselves. W
certainly can | ook into that.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And | bring that
up that if size becones a factor and you don't
want to expand the conpound, that m ght be an

opti on.
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THE W TNESS (Roberts): Thank you. Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And M. Libertine,
one other fine point. WIbur Cross Parkway is
what we call it in this area. The other side is
the Merit.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Did | say the
Merit? My apol ogi es.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  There's a fine
point. Everybody calls it the Merit and -- yeah.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): But there is a
di stinction, so |I'mglad you --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  COh, very nuch.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. W'l
continue with M. Al exander.

MR, ALEXANDER: If you could turn to
sheet nunber A-3 of the site plan. Sheet A-3
shows sone floodlights. |If you would just talk
about the nunber of lights and the configuration
of such lights?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Sure. Those are
service lights for the equi pnent when a cell tech
would go to a site and, you know, it needs service
and a start. Wen we do the -- the lights

t hensel ves are on tiners.
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Usual |y we have them on ei ght-hour
timers. So in fact the cell tech would cone, turn
his light on, do the maintenance if that's the
case. And then he would either turn it off, or it
woul d automatically go off after that duration.

MR. ALEXANDER: So they woul d only be
used when a technician is out for service?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Correct.

MR ALEXANDER: If you | ook at
application page 18, it nentions that space wll
be avail abl e for enmergency comruni cati on
equi pnrent. Has the Town of Handen or any of their
ener gency responders expressed interest in
| ocating at the site?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): They have not at
this time, but in the event they do in the future
we woul d gl adly provide space for them

MR, ALEXANDER: Ckay. And if you could
make an estimate on how nuch space a first
responder m ghty need within the conpound, what
woul d you guess that woul d be?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | would think
they would -- | would think they probably need,

l'i ke, an eight by eight in the conpound.
MR. ALEXANDER: And then lastly if we
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could ook at Exhibit F, the 700 negahertz
coverage map -- oh, I"'msorry. 1'll save that for
Veri zon or Cellco.

Thank you. [I'mall set.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Thank you,
M. Al exander.

M. Harder?
MR. HARDER: Thank you. | have severa
questions that | guess deal with what | nentioned

to a few people on the site, is that what | see is

the weirdness of this site. And it doesn't really

have anything to do -- or not nuch to do, anyway,
wth the cell, the tower location itself in the
conmpound. It's the access road and its proximty

to the house and to the various structures on the
property.

You show t he access road -- well, let ne
ask a question first. Does the access road -- ny
understanding is the first several feet of roadway
is what? |Is now a driveway?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is correct.

MR- HARDER: And |'m ki nd of
interpreting one of the drawings to indicate that
part of the roadway that | guess you're nore

responsi ble for starts about at the back corner of
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the garage. It shows dashed lines for the

first -- | don't know, 70 or 80 feet and then a
solid line roadway fromthe corner of the garage
all the way back.

Am | reading too much into that? O
does that --

THE W TNESS (Roberts): No, that is
correct. W're going to utilize the existing
driveway that is there to the farthest north
property line. W'IIl utilize that. W're, you
know, utilizing or planning to utilize the
existing pole that's at the corner of that
property for our -- our underground electric and
tel co servi ce.

So you're absolutely right. W're going
to cone in along that, that side.

MR HARDER: But it shows -- so it's in
obvi ously very close proximty to the roadway to
the structures. By these draw ngs, anyway, it
shows them basically right next to each other and
in sone of the |ocations, sonme of the stretches of
t he access road and the driveway.

Wien you cone to that first kennel
structure it shows the roadway basically right up

agai nst the back of the kennel. It seens obvi ous
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that you're going to have to have a really good
relationship with that property owner.
And a |l ot of tinmes we see access
roads -- usually we see access roads sonewhat
di stant from structures that are houses or barns,
or what ever on pieces of property. | don't recal
seeing any one like this where it's right up
agai nst structures, right up against the house.
There's a fairly tight turn when you
cone in. It jogs to the right and then back
around to the left to go behind the garage. You

know, you're going to have sone really good

drivers and sone people paying attention. | nean,
does that cause you any concern at all in terns of
access?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, you bring
up a good point. One of the things we have tal ked
about with the owner is possibly relocating that.
Again, it's just a kennel. |It's no foundations.
It's a "shed,"” for |ack of a better term and
possi bly just relocating it, you know, ten feet to
the south to free up sonme of that area.

MR HARDER: WII the property owner
have any right of usage of the access road beyond

the existing driveway.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w Nk

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

47

THE W TNESS (Coppins): They absolutely
can use it. It's not -- it's not exclusive to us.

MR HARDER: Al the way back on the
property? | nean, | understand nmaybe the conpound
itself, there would be restrictions on that, but
the roadway itsel f?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): W have had
ot her -- we have other ones, other roadways that
we put into sites and all | andowners have access
all the way up to it.

MR, HARDER: There's a retaining wall
shown at the very beginning on the north side, |
guess, of the driveway. Does that exist now, or
is that proposed?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is an
exi sting retaining wall.

MR, HARDER: Ckay. WII| you have
responsibility for all nmintenance activities of
the access road and all the way out to the road
including that retaining wall?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): That that's

correct, we wll pmintain that road.
MR. HARDER: Ckay. | believe
M. Roberts, you and | tal ked about -- and there

was a question. One of the interrogatories dealt
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wth this question of the option, or the
possibility of locating the conpound further to
the north, | guess, to get it away fromthose
wet | ands even nore than you' ve al ready proposed.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

MR. HARDER: And | guess the property
owner has indicated an interest in constructing
new structures, or new facilities in that area.
If not for that issue, would your preference be to
|ocate it further in that direction than you' ve
al ready i ndi cated?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Wll, we've
subm tted draw ngs showng the -- the shifting of
t he conpound, but keeping the nonopole itself as
| ocated. And that will give us sone additional
br eat hi ng room between the wetl and resource and
any construction activity.

You know, it's -- it's kind of in a
finger of dry land in between two, two resources.
So we're kind of |ike noving it back on them
We're not getting farther away fromthem but if
we do nmake the shift, which we've proposed that
22 feet to the northwest west -- it should be --
shoul d be farther away.

VMR, HARDER: At |east fromthe wetl and
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map | think it showed, again aside from | guess,
the property owner's desire to reserve sone of
that area for future activities, | thought it
showed an area nore distant fromthe wetl and
before the access road nakes the bend down toward
the conpound area. And |I'mjust wondering if, you
know, your preference would be not just that
20-f oot adjustnent, but a nore significant
adj ustnent basically away fromthose finger, you
know, wetl and areas.

| nean, it nay be a npbot point if the
property owner is saying, you know, no way are we
going to allow that. |'mjust wondering, you
know, if your interest aside fromthat point would
allow you to put it further up north?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, from ny

perspective -- and I'Il | ook for Dean's input as
well -- we're sort of going between two wetl ands
onto this dry land, if you will, which has

wet | ands surrounding it. And we're noving it up
and down on this peninsula, if you wll.

W're never really getting any farther
away fromthe wetl ands by noving the compound up
closer to the northwest. You know, we still have

wet | ands al ong that parcel, the property |ine
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right there itself.
You know, we certainly could nove it.
THE W TNESS (CGustafson): |If | could
junmp in? Just it mght be fruitful for this
di scussion to reference sheet nunber C-2, the site
pl an.
So on that plan where the proposed
revi sed conpound -- the tower is in the sane
| ocati on, but the conpound has been shifted
slightly to the north, northwest. On the
ri ght-hand side or the eastern side of the
conpound you see a projection of a narrow wetl and
finger that ends at wetland flags 1-39 and 1-38.
So we have that narrow projection of
wetland C. That kind of creates a limting
factor. If we -- if we shift the conpound to the
nort hwest, or north northwest it does give us a
greater buffer distance to the wetl ands on either
side. Like you see the flag nunmber 1-57, 58
t hrough the 60 series. And then on the opposite
side you see flag series 1-21, 22, 23.
So if you do shift it into that area it
does gain you a little bit greater buffer to those
wet | and areas, but the limting factor is 1-39 and

38. You're still going to be in very cl ose
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proximty to that.

So it mght gain you a little bit from
the larger surroundi ng wetl ands, but that narrow
seep, that's still kind of a limting factor for
nodi fying the design and trying to create a
overall greater buffer distance to wetland area.

So it certainly is a feasible
alternative to shift it that way, but in the grand
schene of things, in the context with the
different wetland seeps in this area | don't think
you would gain all that rmuch by shifting it into
t hat ar ea.

MR. HARDER: | guess the only thing 1"l
say -- because | think it is a noot point, but I
wasn't tal king about, you know, a relatively snall
shift. | was tal king about | eaping over that area
around 1-38 and 39 up into that, that area just as
t he access road bends down.

But I'massumng that that's where the
property owner is tal king about potential future
activities. | nean, on the face of it, it | ooks
li ke a better location for your tower than where
you' ve got it.

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yeah, you can

certainly shift it into that area. You're stil
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going to be with the grading limts of the
conmpound. You're still going to be in relatively
close proximty to those wetl ands areas.

You coul d have pinch points at 1-21 and
1-65. So you may be able to gain yourself a
little bit greater buffer difference from 1-39 and
38, but you're -- you are still constrained by
that, that wetland pinch kind of once you nake
that turn off the access road by the nmulch pile.

You still have sone |limting factors of
near by wetl and resources. So it is sonething that
we did look at. It would gain a bit extra buffer,
but you know, right now the conpound, the grading
limts of the revised conpound -- or the cl osest
proximty for the actual fenced conpound is about
16 feet.

Maybe you coul d expand that to 25 feet,
but froma wetland i npact perspective that isn't
that big of a difference in ny m nd.

MR. HARDER: Ckay. Thank you.

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): You're
wel cone.

MR. HARDER: Do you know that cul vert
there, the riprap which | guess that cones in from

Route 15, do you know how nmuch drai nage area that
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cul vert receives, or receives runoff fronf

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yeah. | nean,
there is sone drainage that cones fromthe WI bur
Cross Parkway. As far as the actual contributing
drai nage area we did not |look into that at all
And typically fromthe wetl and sci ence perspective
we would rely on the engineer to | ook at that, but

we're not affecting that, that culvert at all.

So I, you know, | rely on -- on Doug
Roberts to nake any -- nake any inference on what
t he drai nage, the drainage area -- but nmaybe if we

can understand naybe the point you're getting at
you can hel p us answer the question.

MR HARDER Well, I'mjust wondering if
there's any potential, significant potential for,
you know, a catastrophic runoff event that would
af fect the access road.

M. Roberts, | think you said that, you
know, you weren't sure -- hadn't seen or hadn't
found where that drainage systemcones out. It's
under ground for sone distance and it goes, you
know, down the slope and you didn't know where it
cane out.

So |'mjust wondering if, you know, you

feel there's any potential -- if you | ooked at
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that potential for any, you know, any significant
storm event causing a problemthere?

THE W TNESS (CGustafson): Yeah. |
can -- thank you for that clarification. 1 can at
| east provide sone of our observations during our
delineation, and then let M. Roberts expand upon
t he di scussi on.

Qobviously, it's arelatively snmall pipe.
It's a 14-inch pipe. W did | ook, and obviously
our wetl and delineation extended further into the
property kind of to eastern side. W couldn't
find the outlet of that pipe.

We assune that it's out-letting
sonewhere into that, deeper into that wetl and
systemand it just goes underneath some of the
barns and paddock areas. But our observations of
that section of flagging that we did from 1-150 to
1-155, it's a fairly narrow drai nage way, and
obviously it is arnored with riprap.

From our delineation and observati on of
any flow characteristics it -- it never | ooked
like it over topped that inlet. And it |ooks like
it's fairly shallow fl ows, at |east from our
observations. So that's just anecdot al

information, but I'lIl let M. Roberts expand.
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THE W TNESS (Roberts): During ny visits
to the site we were | ooking at running that al ong
that area. It wasn't grown up like it was today,
and there's nultiple little fingers |like that sort
of cut in.

It Iooks Iike what they put in, in the
parkway that they created little channels for the
water to just sort of shoot out after it reached a
certain point. And then this one, it |ooks
| i ke they just captured it and piped it back so
they could possibly utilize the existing area for
t heir paddock and kennel s.

MR. HARDER: But you're not aware of
from | guess, fromany di scussions with the
property owner of any issues, any stormrel ated
i ssues causi ng any problens there?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): No, we -- we've
not had that, you know. And |'ve been there
multiple tines. W never really saw anyt hi ng.

MR. HARDER: Ckay. Thank you.

I had a question on the site search.
Just a general question first. And this is true
in alot of situations where other possible sites,
there's an indication of no interest on the part

of the property owners of those other sites.
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In this case was that |ack of interest
denonstrated by specific comments, conversations
wth those property owners? O was it |lack of a
response to an inquiry?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): So sone of them

Were actual conversations, one with the Town,

M. Lang. W had -- | had a conversation with
hi m

The other site that | had a conversation
wth is the -- the water conpany, that they
physically -- | nean, they specifically said we

don't have any land up there for you to | ease.

The -- another one we -- | had, | sent
out letters. | didn't -- it's a bigger property
and | just need to find what exhibit that's under,
because | want to reference that first one.

So St. Mary's Unison Free WII Bapti st
Church, | thought that was a really good site. |
thought it was a possible actually great site. |
sent letters nore than once. Then | sent
certified letters that cane -- that never got
pi cked up. | figured one day I'd go down on a
Sunday and see if they were there.

I went during the week and nobody was

there in the office in New Haven. | figured,
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wel |, maybe they have church on Sunday. |[|'Il see
if I can go to their church. So they didn't have
church. So | haven't been able to contact them
even after several attenpts, but | did think that
was a great site.

MR. HARDER: Yeah, when we see sonetines
possi bl e sites that are churches, or owned by
religious organi zations it always seens |ike, you
know, a lot of themare not flush with cash. And
you know it m ght be sonething they'd be
interested in looking into. It's always
surprising that that usually isn't the case.

THE W TNESS (Coppins): | agree with you
and that's why | nmade several attenpts to try to
get to those people. | think they use it as a
farm but | went to the farmone day and tried to
talk to sonebody, and they weren't part of the
church. So that's -- that's kind of how | cane up
w th those.

MR. HARDER: (Ckay. Just one ot her very
m nor question. There was an indication in sone
of the discussion on the coverage, the existing
coverage, | think a reference to a very short
section of the WIlbur Cross H ghway in the tunnel,

and there were no units. I think it nakes
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reference to a 0.1 segnent of the highway. |
assune that's a 0.1 mles?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): W may want to
| et Verizon answer that at the tine that you --

MR, HARDER: Actually it's -- excuse ne.
It's a response to one of the interrogatories
where that's nenti oned.

MR BALDWN | think that is one of our
interrogatory responses, M. Harder. W' re happy
to answer that after we swear our w tnesses in.

MR. HARDER: Thank you. That's all |
have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch, did you
have coment or question?

MR LYNCH [I'Ill wait for ny turn

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Very good. Thank
you, M. Harder.

M. Hannon?
MR. HANNON: Good afternoon. I'mreally
confused as to what |I'm | ooking at here. |

understand it's a cell tower, but there, going
t hrough the docunents there are a nunber of
different | ease areas that are identifying
different sizes. The sane thing with a fenced

ar ea.
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So for the record, can you pl ease tel
me exactly what we're | ooking at right now for a
| eased area and for a fenced area for the
conpound? And if you want, | can go back and tell
you where a | ot of these different nunbers are,
because they're scattered throughout the docunent.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): W've |eased a
75 by 75 --

MR LYNCH M. Roberts, we can't hear
you.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Sorry. W've
| eased a 75 by 75 foot section of land. And we
are going to fence in 40 by 70. The original
application | understand was 70 by 70, but then we
pul l ed those sides in to allow for a buffer to the
wet | ands.

MR HANNON: |I'mjust trying to nake
sure | know exactly what we're looking at. A
comment was made earlier about noving -- was it
just the conmpound? O was it also the cell tower?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): The draw ngs
t hat we provided, which would be on four, is just
t he conmpound itself noving. The tower itself
woul d stay in the exact location as well as the

heights, so it would not affect any of the visuals
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as well as any of the filings.

MR. HANNON: Then sone of the nunbers
that are different on G2 updated to 9/17/' 19,
when conpared to G2 that was 6/14/'19, that's
because you reduced the size of the conpound?
Because it | ooks like on the plans C 2 dated
6/ 14/" 19, that looks like it mght be the 75 by 75
conpound?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is correct.

MR, HANNON: Ckay. | just want to make
sure because the nunbers line up in terns of where
the tower is, but you' ve got nunbers that have
changed. So it's just kind of confusing. So
t hank you for clarifying that.

On tab |, page 2, under historic
preservation office, comment one, the antennas and
associ ated equi pnent will be designed, painted to
mat ch adj acent nmaterials and installed as
nonvi si bl e as possible. So A, can you explain
what that means; and B, how do you plan to comply?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): On that |
woul d say, heck no. | can't explainit. This is
standard | anguage we're seeing, and | think that
usually is sonething we'll see on attachnents to

exi sting structures |like buildings or water tanks
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where you do have a surroundi ng architectural
feature and col ors.

| just believe they have nore or |ess
used that | anguage al nost ubiquitously in all of
their responses. So | don't think it really neans
anything fromthis particular subm ssion. W
don't have any resources anywhere close to this
froman historic -- our perspective, so.

MR, HANNON: So you're not proposing to
go in wth canoufl age paint and things of that
nat ure?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): | don't think
there's any reason to do anything here for this
particul ar application.

MR. HANNON: Ckay. But again, | nean,
those are their conditions, so that's why |I'm
asking. So that nay be sonething you need to take
up with them

And | think I know what this is, but
again, it goes back to sone of the nunbers |I've
read. In a nunber of places the height of the
nonopol e is 120 above ground el evation. Wth the
top antenna it's 124. But in -- is it this one?

It was the July 1. The answer to A-9,

because it tal ks about clarifying the ground tower
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el evation. And you say, the ground tower

el evation is 124 feet above ground level. It
doesn't say that's with antenna. It just says
that tower elevation is 124.

So I just want to get a clarification
that the 120 is the height of the tower. The 124
is wwth the antenna at the top end?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That is
correct. That should have the highest
appurtenance. | estimate that -- and if | could
just go on the record --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Coul d you use your
m cr ophone, pl ease?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): | just want to
add that | didn't include the ball oon height. I
t hought we should go on the record. W did float
the ball oon today at a tethered height of 120 feet
above the ground, and the 4 feet for the ball oon.

So the bottom of the ball oon represents
the top of the actual structure, and then the
addi tional four feet represents the top of the
ant ennas.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch?

MR LYNCH: | had a simlar question to
M. Hannon, the old Mdlinski factor for the height
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of the tower, the additional four feet for the
ant enna.

But ny question -- | think M. Coppins
said you woul d gi ve energency services, you know,
rights to the tower. Wuldn't they need a whip
antenna that would actually go on top of the tower
so that would nmake it taller?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): That is correct.
That would be the only -- | think that woul d be
about the only place that they could go, because
t hey use those | ong whips.

MR. LYNCH. You'll have to adjust the
height of the tower. Most of these whips are, you
know, 14, 15 feet?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That's
correct. They're typically twenty feet,
typically. But you're correct, typically they
woul d go at the top of the collar arrangenent in
t hen and extend above that.

MR. LYNCH. Thank you. Thank you, M.
Chai r man.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, nr.
Lynch.

M . Hannon, pl ease conti nue.

MR HANNON: |I'mdone. |I'mgoing to
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quit while |I'm ahead.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M.
Hannon.

M. Edel son?

MR EDELSON: So just for the record.
M. Coppins, the relationshi p between Phoeni x
Part nership and the applicant, can you descri be
t hat ?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Yes. | do a |lot
of the consulting work with -- with the Tarpon
Towers. | think I've done all of Tarpon Towers'
sites in Connecticut, brought themfrom-- from
the very beginning all the way to the very end.
|'mnot related with the Tarpon other than a
contractual rel ationship.

MR. EDELSON: The deci sion on the
500-gal | on tank, whose decision was that? Was
that a Cellco decision, or was that a Tarpon Tower
deci si on?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): A propane tank
for 500 gallons is pretty nmuch a standard si ze
for -- for them That gives them an X anount of
day runtinme at |oad, and that's what they're
| ooking for. Again, we're |ooking for an

ener gency service where, you know, a hurricane
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cane in. W'd be down wth no comercial power.
That generator wll run for its -- three, four
days straight.

MR EDELSON:. And X equals three to

four?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): Correct, at ful
| oad.

MR EDELSON: If you turn to the
visibility, I think it's nunber 22. | was
wondering if sonebody could -- M. Libertine,
maybe you can speak to the -- it seened like a

strange angle on that particular visibility
picture. Let's see if |I can bring it up.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): This was taken
fromthe road itself. The road is a little bit
lower in elevation than the -- there's, like, a
common drive that goes in front of these hones.

And so that's why you see the cars that
are parked in the foreground. |Is just that we're
at a lower elevation than the private | ane that
goes in front of these hones.

MR EDELSON: Could you just nove
yourself up to where the car was at a nornal
person's height of five feet, or four to five

feet? It would be a very different image.
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THE W TNESS (Libertine): Certainly the
perspective would change. | would agree with
t hat .

MR. EDELSON: And the decision to do it,
al nost | ooks |like ground |evel, which I don't ever
recall seeing a picture |like that before.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Again, what
we're |l ooking at, we're at the curb | evel of the
road and that's a private drive that we're | ooking
up. So the property rises.

MR. EDELSON: And that's done where a
person woul d be standi ng, as opposed to -- the way
the ground is there it al nost seens |ike the point
of reference is on the ground. But you're saying
t hat sonmeone, or that sinmulation is as if the
visibility was from soneone at a nornmal standing
hei ght ?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): No -- yeah
we -- we're at eye height at the point where the
canera is. And so it has created a little bit of
an odd angl e just because of the slope of the --
of the yard. Am Il not answering the question?

MR EDELSON: Again, | just -- when |
see the tops of the cars there and | see the tower

right in the back there it just seens like it was
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al nost deli berately done to nask where the tower
woul d be visible fromthose two houses, or from
where the cars are?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Wll, | can --
| can assure you that was not an intentional
trying to do anything, other than just to depict
what you would ook at if you were on the public
road fromwhere we took that photo.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Libertine,
you' re at standi ng hei ght when you took that
pi cture on a public road which you have access to,
but you would not be able to get up to the hill
because it's private property in that picture?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That's
correct. And what we often find, and | -- |
under st and t hat perhaps the concern that you have,
but you need to understand when we're taking these
photos in this day and age we often get questi oned
as to why we're even taking phot ographs.

So we're very careful not to step on
lawmns. O -- we have been -- literally had the
police called on us. So we are very careful.

Il will say this. If you did walk to
those hones that balloon that you're seeing in

photo 22 and the actual tower would actually be at
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a lower -- you would actually be closer to the
treel i ne because of perspective.

But -- granted you woul d be cl oser, but
it would actually have the balloon -- it would
actually bring the balloon down in the perspective
closer to the treeline. So if anything, that is
what |'Il call a worst case scenario fromthat
general area.

MR EDELSON: |'m | ooking at the photo
shown -- this is ny own curiosity | think | see
the red balloon. |Is the tower -- it looks like a
tower, | would say, about an inch to the |eft of
that on the horizon. |Is that the existing SBA
t ower ?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): On the actua
ri dgeline?

MR EDELSON:  Yes.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Yes -- well,
actually I wll not speak to that. | am not sure
if that's the police tower or the SBA tower.
There are a few towers up on that ridgeline.

MR EDELSON: At this point all we know,
it's a tower?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): | just can't

say for sure. | apologize. | just don't -- |
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know there are nultiple towers up there. There's
only one in this viewand it's in the general area
of the SBA, but I'd hate to go and characterize it
as that and then find out |later that that may not
be the exact tower.

But it's certainly one of the towers
on -- on the ridgeline. | apologize for not being
able to say with all certainty.

MR, EDELSON: | think you said earlier
you had the ability to wal k sone of the trails at
the nature center. Did you go on your own, or
were you acconpani ed by anybody fromthe nature
center?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): W do that
i ndependently. It's open to the public.

MR. EDELSON: Any conversations with
peopl e at the nature center?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): No, it was
actually fairly quiet both tines that we went
there. It was during the week m dday and there
was sone activity. There were sone people
wal ki ng, but we didn't see anybody who seened to
be affiliated with the park itself.

MR, EDELSON: | don't think I have any

further questions.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M . Edel son.
M. Lynch?
MR, LYNCH. | have a few questions,

M. Chairman, but sone of themnay pertain to this
appli cant and sone of themmay pertain to Verizon
as far as our record is concerned.

If you want to pass it back and forth
you can -- but first off, | already got to the
hei ght of the tower. |Is there any plan, energency
preparation plan, you know, in place for when we
know there's, like, a major hurricane com ng | ast
week, or a blizzard, to go into a check of the
site to make sure the tanks are topped off,
everything is secure? |Is there anything in place
li ke that?

And again, if this is yours or Verizon's
"Il just pass it on to them They heard it.

They can answer it |ater.

THE WTNESS (Coppins): | think it's
Veri zon.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah. I was going
to say, | don't want to interject because | don't

have Verizon sworn in or anything at this point.

So all questions really got to go to you peopl e at
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this point.

MR LYNCH: No, no, M. Chairnman.
They're going to be comng up. So I'll just pass
it on to them

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay.

MR LYNCH. And this question is

probably theirs also. |In an energency situation,
you | ose your phone line -- | think this is
theirs, so I'll wait.

Coul d you explain to ne you've got a
propane tank and a diesel. Quickly, it could be,
you said, M. Coppins, a diesel they may use. Can
you explain to ne the pros and cons of using a
propane tank, or using a diesel generator to -- or
diesel to run a generator?

You know, we get this all the tine. |
shoul d have asked this question a long tine ago,
but what's the benefit of propane and what are the
you know, the cons? Go ahead, M. Roberts.

You' re up.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): 1'll give you
the pros and cons. The pros of diesel is it's --
many times it's a self-contained tank, you know,
belly tank as we knows. You know, when we had

shelters the generator was -- the fuel tank was
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bel ow t he generator in the shelter.

Now t hey have small er footprints,
snmal l er generators, less load. So we still have
that contai nnent within that generator. The good
thing is it's all self-contained. There's, you
know, a double-walled tank and a | ot of belts and
suspenders notifications.

What happens is | arge conpani es don't
want to have any kind of risk associated with a
wet |l ands problem So that's why we go with
propane, because propane woul d just evaporate.

The di sadvant ages of propane is -- and
we | earned that basically a 500-gallon tank has
400 gal l ons of fuel, but that's at an anbi ent
tenperature of, like, 65 degrees. As it gets
really cold it's not drawing liquid, it's draw ng
t he vapors that are off-gassing.

So in fact we've had to -- one that
sticks in the top of ny mnd is in Geenw ch at
the Round Hill Church. | think we put three tanks
t here because we couldn't get -- we didn't need
the runtine. W needed the anpbunt of surface area
for the | arge generator to be able to run at that
zero degrees. State police traditionally have

used them and they bury them so that they stay
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war ner .

MR. LYNCH: We can cover that too,
because | was talking to sone of the propane
people. And they say the problemthem have,
especially in cold weather is the generators tend
to freeze -- | nean, the regulators tend to freeze
up.

And so is that why -- where is the
regul ator, | guess, is ny question?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, there's a
regular -- a regulator right on the top of the
tank itself that regul ates how much gas can
actually enter into the -- into the pipe that
feeds the generator itself.

MR, LYNCH: Now with the shrinking of
t he conmpound that you nentioned earlier that you
coul d have a problemgetting a nunber of tanks in
there. Could you get a |l esser tank than
500 gallons? Could you put in 250 and, you know?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, what el se
ki nd of happens is it's that 500-gallon tank, the
spark distance is always interpreted by the |ocal
fire marshal, but it's to the regulator itself
when you think about it.

You know, they want nothing wthin
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ten feet of that. That could off gas. |It's

not -- the end of the tank is not going to lite.
It's going to be where, you know, a | eak could
happen and a spark froma plug. So you know, a
500-gallon tank is one -- if we put two or three
120s, well, actually it m ght be a bigger area.

MR. LYNCH:. You pretty much answered ny
next question, too. But | do have a question with
regards to the batteries at the facility. Wen
woul d batteries kick in? Is there a fast start?
Do they kick in first, or is there a fast start
for the generators?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): I'mgoing to --
can | answer this on behalf of Verizon?
Utimately the radios are |like a | aptop conputer.
They're always running on a battery. Your |aptop
doesn't know if it's plugged into the wall or not.
It does when the battery goes dead, but ultimtely
it just says, hey, | have, you know, 24 volts or
12 volts depending on what it is, and that's how
the radi os work in those shelters.

They don't see a | oss of commrerci al
power at all. They're just working on the
batteries, and the batteries are the ones that

say, hey, wait. 1'll need to charge or |oss of
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commercial power will imediately kick on the
generator to keep those batteri es charged.

MR LYNCH: What would be under a full
enmergency, full load situation in the lifetinme of
these batteries, the running lifetine of these
batteries?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Wthout a backup
generator they're usually, | believe, sized for
four hours, though that changes fromtine to tine.
If we can't do a generator we'll -- we'll

sonetines put in eight hours worth of batteries,

and |"'massumng that's at full |oad, which very
few sites are at a hundred percent full | oad.
MR, LYNCH:. |' m skipping back and forth

here in nmy questions. You were talking earlier
about alternative sites and | noticed this a | ot
when they're being described. | think it's, you
know, in set two wth question twelve or
sonet hi ng.

You know, there's a standard answer.
| " munable to get in touch with the owner, or
owner not interested. And it kind of tells me --
| renmenber Senator Murphy said the sane thing. It
kind of tells nme you're not really investigating

alternate sites. | knowit's a | oaded questi on,
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but --
THE W TNESS (Coppins): It could be, and

some site act people don't do really good site

search. |I'mnot one of those. | really do
research sites. | look at themfirst. If | think
it's a good site -- |I've been doing this a | ong
tinme.

I mean, | can tell if sonething is going

to be a good site, or a site that's going to be
quite difficult. 1 don't pursue those as hard,
but I want to look at them But | certainly -- |
certainly have for years nmade sure that |'ve done
a great site search sunmmary.

MR. LYNCH. But you can understand when
you see the sanme answer over and over again. It
| ooks |i ke, you know, soneone is not really paying
any attention.

THE W TNESS (Coppins): If | could --
sonme of those -- of the owner, | can see sone of
those. They kind of backed up. They were on
the -- what is it? The west side of the -- the

nort hwest side of the WI bur Cross. They

actually -- they were -- they were houses, but
they backed up to that. | thought they m ght
wor K.
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It was just sonething that | wanted to
cover nyself, but they never really answered and I
really -- I"'mnot sure | really wanted to pursue
it inthe first place, but I -- but |I put it in
t here because it could have been a possible site.

MR. LYNCH. Thank you. It's just
sonething | wanted to get on the record. Thank
you.

And in the application you nentioned
that you do not think there's going to be any
bl asting involved at the site, and | take that.
That's fine. M question is, if you find out you
do have to bl ast, would you put out a notice to
all the neighbors, the tinme and the day of the
bl asti ng?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | woul d suggest
we are -- yeah, you're right. W see we're not
going to blast, and what we'd have in that case
Is, you know, we have -- we're bringing in fill to
rai se the conpound slightly. So we do have
sone -- sonme roomthere, too.

Ceotech will tell us whether the rock is
suitable or if it's just sonething, you know, for
rock anchors and/or if it's easily just hamered

out . Most of the tinme we've been able to hamer
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out rock. W saw that sort of riprap-y hill side.
If you were there in the winter you would see that
whol e hill is --

MR LYNCH | just want to -- just so --
in the extrenme situation where you woul d have
to -- | just wanted to make sure that the
nei ghbors and the police were all notified.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): W would have
to follow protocols for a blasting plan. So yes,
there woul d be notifications invol ved.

MR LYNCH: M. Libertine, I'"mglad you
answered that because | have a question for you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER° M. Hannon has a
f ol | owup.

MR HANNON: |If you have to do the
bl asting the fire marshal is going to be dealing
wth that. But anyway, with sone of the protocols
| don't know if this is sonething that woul d be
consi dered, but | would recommend it if you do
have to blast is to try to make arrangenents with
t he honeowner and take before and after pictures.

You' d be amazed at how many foundati ons
cracked that did not get a single vibration. So
just a word of safety.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,
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M . Hannon.

MR. LYNCH. M. Libertine, on your
Nat i ve Ameri can archaeol ogi cal survey that you
sent in you reference, of course, the locals, the
Mohi cans the Pequots. |'ll give you the
Del awares, but | don't understand where the
Chi ppewa is coming from You know, they're South
and Mdwest. |Is there a national or regional
ar chaeol ogi cal group you have to go to?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Yes. Actually
as part of the NEPA conpliance for the Nati onal
Envi ronnental Policy Act there are requirenents.
And t he FCC devel oped a notification process so
t hat when you apply for clearance, they have a
systemin place. So you electronically notify the
FCC.

They have actually worked with the
Nati onal Bureau of Indian Affairs to essentially
be in touch with all of the recognized federal
tribes. They have all joined this notification
systemall, al nost 300 tri bes.

And so anytine a new tower i s proposed
it must be posted and if a tribe weighs in with
interest, then you are then to consult with them

So to answer your question, we have had
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interest fromtribes as far away as the Wst Coast
who have clained that at sone point in their
tribal history they have used this region perhaps
for sumrer hunting grounds, migration routes, that
type of thing. So it's not uncomon to see tribes
fromall over the country.

We typically get in Connecticut anywhere
fromsix to ten different tribes weighing in at
any given tine. So that's why you see those,
those tribes fromout of state.

MR LYNCH It was nostly a curiosity
question, but thank you. And now it also
referenced in the application, or interrogatory,
that T-Mobile would be interested in going on the
site. |If they are, have they given you any
ti metabl e or schedul e for when they m ght cone
onto the site after it's done?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): They said if the
site is approved they would cone in for a tower
sharing application inmedi ately. W have, in our
| ease we have -- we actually have a mechani sm
to -- for themto act to actually go on.

MR LYNCH. A tower sharing application,
it could be immediate, right after the tower is

built or it could be a year or so later. So ny
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question is really did they give you a tinetable
on that application for tower sharing?

THE W TNESS (Coppi ns): When | have
spoken with themthey have said that as soon as
this is -- if this gets approved they would --
they would cone in imedi ately for a tower sharing
appl i cation.

MR. LYNCH. Thank you. And ny | ast
question | guess for this panel -- the rest |
guess are all RF questions. You have referenced
in here to the nearest school or the nearest
daycare, but the daycare are conmerci al daycares.

Is there any place you can go to get
private daycare where they daycare for siXx
students and under? |s that avail abl e anywhere?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): That list, you
woul d have to actually do a search |like a Google
search essentially for the i nmmedi ate area, which
we do as part of this. But we do nmaintain a
dat abase of all of the |icensed daycares.

MR, LYNCH. That's all ny questions for
this panel, M. Chairnman. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you,

M. Lynch.

I have a couple for you, and | wanted to
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start back wth the 500-gall on propane tank. The
draw ngs actually have that tank, but if you could
turn to page 22 of your application in the
beginning it states that provisions have been made
for a permanent on-site diesel generator. Could
you explain that to ne?

Page 22 right in the beginning. It's in
section D, other environnental factors?

THE W TNESS ( Coppi ns): Can you
reference where you' re seeing that, please?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah. Page 22,
you have -- on the top of the page it's "D" in
bol d, other environnental factors. And this is
the second to the | ast sentence in the first
paragraph. And if you would |like ny book I can
gi ve you ny book.

MR MARINO. W have it. Thank you.

THE W TNESS (Coppins): So | have --
think that's referring to Verizon's on-site
generator, and | -- | recognize the fact that it's
now -- now it's a propane generator.

So ny application says, diesel, what
they canme to me with, and that's probably where it
cane from but then it was changed on the plan.

So |l think that --
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THE W TNESS (Libertine): If | just nmay
make just an observation? This often happens.
Typically diesel is the preferred choice in these
cases, but speaking on behalf of Verizon, having
done work with them on the environnental end for
close to 20 years, if we have proximty to
wet | ands they would prefer to use propane just so
that they do not have the potential for any type
of catastrophic issue reaching to the wetl ands.

We al so changed from di esel to propane
if we know there's contam nation on-site just so
that there wouldn't be a potential for m xing back
down the road if there had been a spill, and then
soneone pointing the finger at Verizon. So these
things do change in flux, and that's strictly each
commercial carrier is different.

T-Mobil e has just recently in the past
year and a half been installing generators as --
at alot of their existing facilities, and | have
not seen any propane tanks ever install ed.

They -- they seemto go solely with diesel
regardless. So | think it really comes down to
each carrier's risk tol erance.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: But the

application in front of us is for a 500-gall on
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propane tank?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That is
correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: And t hen the
t hought m ght be if sonebody el se cones in and
you' re thinking of having space available for a
di esel generator. Wuld that be correct?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): M/ T-Mobile
application and their | ease does state that they
have a 25-kW di esel generator.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. And that
m ght be where that cane from Ckay. Staying
wth the 500-gall on propane tank. M. Roberts,
you nentioned maybe a three to four-day full | oad
operation. What's a full | oad operation?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): It's ful
kil owatt hours -- or it's full load. |In other
words, if it's a 35-kWgenerator it would put out
t hat nmaxi mum | oad, which we nornally woul dn't.
They're sized and the | oads for the equi pnent
itself, usually they're running at |ess than half.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And t he anount of
kilowatts froma generator would rise because of
everything going on with all the providers on a

cell tower?
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THE W TNESS (Roberts): Just the Verizon
equi pment, yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So you woul d be
| oaded basically to the maxi mum which is why the
generator has to run at full |oad?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Correct.

THE HEARING OFFICER Is the three to
four-day full | oad run based on 500 gall ons from
t he propane tank?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  The propane tank
woul d only hold 400 gall ons, though?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  So | woul d t hi nk
that it would be based on 400 gall ons, not 500.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, it's
400 gallons of run. 400 gallons of usable fuel in
a 500-gallon tank. Correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you. If 1
coul d have you |l ook at the first page of the site
search summary, which is Exhibit G2 And I'll turn
it so |l have a reference in front of ne. The very
bottom of the first paragraph. Wy Naugatuck?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): That's a typo.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: It should be?
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THE W TNESS (Coppins): It should be
Hamden. | apol ogi ze.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Handen. Ckay.

The site itself that you're | ooking at,
do you know if there's any |legalized hunting in
t he area?

"Il tell you the reason |I'm aski ng.
You have a 500-gall on propane tank. | don't know
if an errant shot would go off from sonebody t hat
m ght be hunting in the area, and | ook at that
tank. That's ny question?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Fully
understood. Very good point. | don't know what
the hunting restrictions are in that area itself,
but a 500-gall on propane tank woul d be sonet hi ng
t hat many peopl e that have a gas furnace that
don't have natural gas avail able, that woul d be
sonet hing they'd have at their house.

You know, | have done hones in
Wbodbri dge w th t housand-gal | on propane tanks.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Again, |1'd | ook at
it being out of the woods and, you know, if there
is legalized hunting maybe you want to consi der
just sone kind of protection?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Sure. W -- we
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have -- we have done protection around propane
tanks for that reason as well. Sonetines they're
in hunting areas and sonetinmes they're even at
shooti ng, whatever -- people go to show their
guns.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ranges?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Ranges. So you
know, there's active people around where this
woul dn't be that.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Let nme nobve onto
anot her question. M understanding is that the
Departnent of Transportation is contenpl ating
adding a third tunnel to Heroes Tunnel there on
the W1 bur Cross Par kway.

Shoul d that go through, do you see any
potential inpacts fromtheir construction on
buil ding a new tunnel to what you' re proposing for
the tower?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): From ny
perspective | woul d see absol utely nothi ng except
a lot of delays and a lot of, you know,
construction activity, but it's all south on the
par kway.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. | just

wanted to check, because | don't know when t hat
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m ght happen. 1It's been contenplated for years.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Centuries.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Yeah. Ckay. The
ot her questions | have, they're going to border
agai n between you and Verizon. So if it's a
|ateral to Verizon we can take care of it another
time, but at least |let nme pose themto you now.

If you | ook at page 2 of the application
i n your executive sunmmary it has service provided
by Verizon's Handen cell site; has grown to be
nore problematic causing interference with several
of its surrounding sites.

So if | referenced the existing adjacent
towers map in Exhibit G That's the site search
map. The question | have first off is, who owns
all the towers that are in Exhibit G? Are those
all Verizon towers or sonebody else's towers?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): 1"l speak --
not having the map, and Keith is going to | ook for
the map, but certainly the one that's sort of
directly over the tunnel is the state police
facility that does have cellular carriers on it.

| know AT&T is on it. | believe
T-Mobile is on it. There is in fact two

1, 000-gal |l on propane tanks up there. Just because
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of the accessibility as one would inagine in the
wntertine if there is an outage they can't --
can't easily refill those.

The towers that are up to the north
woul d be the SBA, and | think they referred to it
as the MCM the Center Managenent Tower. And
there's two or three other towers in that
imMmedi ate area. | don't know if they're just
relics of hamradio or sonething, but there it
| ooks li ke they' re sonewhat abandoned.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): To answer the
question, it's nultiple tower owners. Verizon is
on the towers, but they do not own those towers.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  So Verizon is on
all these towers that are in this map?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That's

correct.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thi s one here?
THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yeah -- no,
|'"msorry. | msspoke. | thought the -- |
t hought we were showing this existing -- oh, these
are just adjacent towers. |I'msorry. M
apol ogies. | thought it was the neighboring
t ower s.

We nornmally show a |ist where Verizon is
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on, but to answer the question it's nmultiple tower
owners, and i don't think we even have -- we could
cross-reference all these agai nst the database
fromthe Siting Council, but it's -- it's multiple
owner s.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No, that's why I
said ny, you know, |'m kind of bordering on what
you have for an applicati on and what questions |
have for Verizon. And I'mgoing to hold and wait
for the tinme for Verizon on that one.

THE W TNESS (Libertine): I'msorry to
add to the confusion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No, but thank you.

This, this mght be a Verizon one, too,
which woul d be ny | ast question at this point. If
you |l ook at -- you provided us with propagation
plots that are in Exhibit F. And first of all,
"Il ask -- any questions | have on the plots,
woul d they be for you, or would they be for
Veri zon?

MR BALDWN. | think they woul d be
Veri zon.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Then | won't go
any further. Al right. Thank you. Let ne ask

the council nenbers if they have any foll ow up
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question, or M. Mercier, if you have any
foll ow up questions, please?

MR MERCIER | just have a coupl e of
foll ow ups based on sone of the earlier coments.
One has to do with the potential for a whip
antenna goi ng at the top.

And M. Libertine, if you could speak to
if a 15 or 20-foot whip antenna was pl aced on top
of this tower at sonme point in the future, how
woul d that affect the visibility from area
resources such as Lake Wntergreen or the WI bur
Cr oss Par kway?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): 1'mgoing to
assune that nost likely it would be a two-inch
di pol e antenna. So these are, you know, very | ow
price -- very low profile.

At the di stances, you know, once you get
beyond an eighth of a mle or so away fromthese
things they really do not become a prom nent
feature on the tower. So | would say from--
certainly from Lake Wntergreen and nost | ocations
nmovi ng al ong the WI bur Cross Parkway, unless
you're right up against the property |I don't think
it would really nake any type of a difference in

terms of the visibility.
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MR. MERCIER Ckay. But since an eighth
of amle, so it may be discernable from Wodin
Street in front of the host property?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Certainly,
yeah. Certainly, if you were to take a | ook at
phot ogr aph nunmber 7 which is out right in front of
the property, anything along that road you
certainly would be able to see that there's a whip
on top of it.

MR- MERCI ER  Thank you. My other
question has to do with site plan G2 that was
submtted today. To expand on M. Harder's
comments regarding the entranceway, there was kind
of aretaining wall there. There was kind of
sharp angles due to the existing structures, |ike
t he garage and an electric neter, a deck.

Are construction vehicles going to be
able to access this type of configuration? O are
they going to have to go in through the existing
asphalt type road that goes through the m ddl e of
t he property?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Well, when we
did this plan we were -- we were contenpl ati ng,
you know, utilizing that as access for

construction vehi cl es today.
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MR MERCIER Utilizing what?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): The proposed
access. You know again, it's going to be, you
know, once we have our crane work done and our
heavy excavati on done and backfilling, | nean,
it's not a lot of vehicles that are large. There
are, you know, snmall vehicles --

MR MERCIER No, | guess ny question
was, how are you going to get the crane back
t here?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That was our
plans to cone through that area. It's a pinch
point. You know, the owner knows that we are
going to have to access that, and I don't know if
he pl anned for that big road that he placed in the
m ddl e -- but that would work good for our
constructi on.

MR MERCIER Ckay. And |I'm |l ooking at

the road adjacent to the kennel. [I'Il just cal
it the right side. |1Is that a drainage ditch, or
is that just like a slope. Like, where it says --

THE W TNESS (Roberts): A swale.
MR MERCIER A swal e.
THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yeah, sone

draining so that we don't pond water agai nst the
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back of the buil ding.

MR MERCIER Which way is it draining
to?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): In that case
we're -- we're actually draining to the sout hwest.
MR- MERCIER  To the kennel ?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): No, that would
be southwest. The kennel would be to the south --
to the -- it would be just draining towards the
tower itself.

MR MERCIER  Ckay. |I'mtalking about
the, | guess, the north side of the kennel where
it says 140 between the giant tree?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yeah. There
we're draining all the water. W' re dropping --
our grading in is dropping down towards the tower.
So we're -- we're going to be draining along that
backsi de.

MR MERCIER Ckay. It just appears
that the water is going into the kennel. That's
all. I'mtalking the right side of the kennel.

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yeah.

MR MERCIER Ckay. So on the left side
of the kennel that's just going to drain. |Is

there a flat point northwest of the barn that's
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marked with a little fence?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yeah, where we
have construction siltation fence. Yeah, we're
just really capturing the water on the side of the
road.

MR MERCIER So is it continued
flowmng? O is it just kind of a flat part where
it discharges right in the path?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): It's -- there's
not a lot of grade. It's not like we're putting a
swal e next to a steep, you know, 15 percent grade
road. It's, you know, it's dropping at two feet.
So it's just sort of like a drainage area al ong
the side for water to collect.

MR MERCIER  Ckay. And expand upon
that, that pipe that nay be there. 1 think | see
it. So that the discharge pipe fromthe WI bur
Cross Parkway does go across the road into your --
this proposed swale, if it's there?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yeah, if it
exi sts underneath. |'m sure when we're doing our
utility work we'll -- we'll uncover it.

MR MERCIER If it is there and you're
installing your utilities what are you going to do

if it's underneath the soil in that area? Do you
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anticipate it's going to extend it?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Wrk around it,
yeah. W would just replace in kind. [It's
draining. It must have sone gradiant to it.

MR MERCIER If you do interfere with a
potential pipe fromthe WI bur Cross Parkway, is
that a permt to the DOT that m ght own that?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | honestly don't
know. | would think not, because it's on private
property. It's not on a road, public roadway. |
don't think the DOT placed it in there. | think
it was a landlord that said, well, if | can
capture this water over here and get it to the
ot her side | have usable land. | don't have to
junmp across the street.

MR MERCIER Al right. Thank you. No
ot her questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M.

Mer ci er.

Yes, M. Edel son.

MR, EDELSON:. | shoul d have followed up
before. This is on the wetlands -- | think it's

Exhibit M page 2 of 2 of the delineation. So on
the first |line under general comments it says,

Phoeni x Partnership is proposing, but | think that
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shoul d be Tarpon Towers is the one proposing, not
Phoeni x partnership. You're a consultant to, so
t hat m ght be an update.

But ny real question is at the bottom
|"mjust a little unclear on -- | think this would
be for M. Qustafson. The third to last line, it
says that APT wll provide a wetl and i npact
eval uati on under separate cover upon receipt of
project site plans. |Is that underway, or is that
sonething you're waiting for the D and M? O
what's the timng on that?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): W actually
conpl eted the inpact analysis. The office work,
as far as generating an actual docunent, that's
still in the work. So that can either be a late
file to the Council, or we can incorporate that
into the D and M process should the Counci
approve the facility.

We probably -- we already have -- we're
al ready going to provide the wetland protection
plan as a late file. So | think we'll incorporate
that into our wetland i npact assessnent docunent.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  We're going to
have a continuati on obviously on this one. Could

you get it in enough tinme that we could examne it
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before the conti nuation hearing?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): That will not
be a problem at all

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you.

M. Hannon?

MR. HANNON: Thank you. Based on the
revised plans that canme in today on nap G 2 and
C-3 ny question is, there's a bunch of grading
that's proposed. |Is the grading within the
proposed | ease area? O does it al so extend
out si de the | ease area?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): There's grading
that's outside the | ease area as well as along the
access way as wel | .

MR. HANNON: Ckay. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Lynch?

MR LYNCH. In order to ask ny question
| want to get a clarification on who's responsi bl e
for maintai ning the propane tank. Yourself, or
woul d t hat be Verizon?

THE W TNESS (Coppins): It would be
Veri zon.

MR, LYNCH. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  All right. Wth

no further questions the Council wll recess now
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until 6:30 p.m, at which time we'll comence the
public comment session of this hearing.

And t hank you.

(Wher eupon, the above proceedi ngs were

concluded at 4:55 p.m)
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